

**PROPOSED REGULATION OF THE DIVISION OF INDUSTRIAL
RELATIONS OF THE DEPARTMENT OF
BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY**

LCB File No. R160-08

July 15, 2008

EXPLANATION – Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets ~~[omitted material]~~ is material to be omitted.

AUTHORITY: §§1 and 2, NRS 455C.110.

A REGULATION relating to elevators; revising the definition of the term “special inspector”; revising provisions relating to certain publications adopted by reference by the Division of Industrial Relations of the Department of Business and Industry; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Section 1. NAC 455C.440 is hereby amended to read as follows:

455C.440 “Special inspector” means an elevator inspector who holds a certificate of competency and who is employed or retained ~~[as an independent contractor by an insurance company authorized to insure]~~ *to inspect* elevators in this State. *The term does not include an inspector as defined in NAC 455C.422.*

Sec. 2. NAC 455C.500 is hereby amended to read as follows:

455C.500 1. The following codes, manuals and standards are hereby adopted by reference by the Division and may be obtained for the price listed:

(a) *Safety Code for Elevators and Escalators*, A17.1, ~~[2004]~~ *2007* edition and addenda, including appendices, published by the American Society of Mechanical Engineers, for the price of ~~[\$195.]~~ *\$250*, except that rule 2.12.5 - Restricted Opening of Hoistway or Car Doors, is deleted.

- (b) *Guide for Inspection of Elevators, Escalators, and Moving Walks*, A17.2, ~~[2001]~~ **2007** edition, published by the American Society of Mechanical Engineers, for the price of ~~[\$125.]~~ **\$165.**
- (c) *Safety Requirements for Personnel Hoists and Employee Elevators on Construction and Demolition Sites for Construction and Demolition Operations*, A10.4, ~~[1990]~~ **2007** edition, published by the American National Standards Institute, for the price of ~~[\$91.]~~ **\$70.**
- (d) *Safety Standard for Belt Manlifts*, A90.1, 2003 edition, published by the American Society of Mechanical Engineers, for the price of ~~[\$50.]~~ **\$57.**
- (e) *Safety Code for Existing Elevators and Escalators*, A17.3, ~~[2002]~~ **2005** edition, published by the American Society of Mechanical Engineers, for the price of ~~[\$75.]~~ **\$99.**
- (f) *Guidelines for Accessible and Usable Buildings and Facilities*, A117.1, sections 4.07 and 4.08, ~~[1998]~~ **2003** edition, published by the American National Standards Institute, for the price of ~~[\$40.]~~ **\$46.**
- (g) *Guide for Emergency Personnel*, A17.4, 1999 edition, published by the American Society of Mechanical Engineers, for the price of \$35.
- (h) *Safety Standard for Platform Lifts and Stairway Chairlifts*, A18.1, ~~[2003]~~ **2005** edition, published by the American Society of Mechanical Engineers, for the price of ~~[\$75.]~~ **\$80.**
- (i) *Standard for the Qualification of Elevator Inspectors*, QEI-1, ~~[2001 edition and addenda.]~~ **2007 edition**, published by the American Society of Mechanical Engineers, for the price of ~~[\$58.]~~ **\$59.**
- (j) *Elevator and Escalator Electrical Equipment*, A17.5, ~~[1996]~~ **2004** edition, published by the American Society of Mechanical Engineers, for the price of ~~[\$69.]~~ **\$85.**

*(k) Performance-Based Safety Code for Elevators and Escalators, A17.7, 2007 edition,
published by the American Society of Mechanical Engineers, for the price of \$135.*

2. The codes, manuals and standards set forth in subsection 1 which are published by the American Society of Mechanical Engineers may be obtained from the ASME International, 22 Law Drive, P.O. Box 2900, Fairfield, New Jersey 07007-2900.

3. The codes, manuals and standards set forth in subsection 1 which are published by the American National Standards Institute may be obtained from *IHS* Global Engineering Documents, 15 Inverness Way East, Englewood, Colorado 80112.

4. If any publication adopted by reference in this section is revised, the Administrator shall review the revision to determine its suitability for this State. If the Administrator determines that the revision is not suitable for this State, he shall hold a public hearing to review his determination and give notice of that hearing within 6 months after the date of the publication of the revision. If, after the hearing, the Administrator does not revise his determination, the Administrator shall give notice that the revision is not suitable for this State within 30 days after the hearing. If the Administrator does not give such notice, the revision becomes part of the publication adopted by reference in this section.